
 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

Tuesday, March 15, 2016, 7:00 PM 
The Forum, 100 State Street 

 
 

1. Roll Call 

 

2. Minutes of the February 16, 2016 Meeting 

 

3. Public Comments 

 

4. Allen Carley - Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2016-02 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace four 

windows on the residential structure located at 729 Bluff Street. 

 

5. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness & Activities Since Last Meeting 

 

6. Historic District Signage Discussion 

Discussion of potential sign designs and locations 

 

7. Committee Reports 

 A. Education & Outreach Committee 

 B. Grant Writing Committee 

 C.  Site Visit Committee 

 

8. Items for Future Agendas 

 

9. Adjournment 
 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, notify the Planning Office at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM 
the day before the meeting. 
    
Approved: Alex Morganroth, Planner 
   March 2, 2016 
 

**  Please note that upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 

disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, please 

contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511. 



 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

Tuesday, February 16, 2016, 7:00 PM 
The Forum, 100 State Street 

 

1. Roll Call 

 Commissioner Blazer called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. 

 Commissioners Blazer, Truesdale, Vater, Kaye, and Vollmer were present. 

 Commissioners Johnson, Joyce, and Kelley were absent. 

 

2. Minutes of the December 15, 2015 Meeting 

Commissioners Vollmer and Johnson moved to approve the minutes. Motion carried, 5-0.  

 

3. Public Comments: None 

 

4. Scott and Joyce Williams – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-55 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to remove 

front façade door shutters, install new exterior porch lights, and install window boxes on the 

residential structure located at 811 Chapin Street. 

 

Mr. Morganroth read the staff report and recommendation.  

 

The applicant, Mr. Scott Williams, discussed his vision for the porch. Mr. Williams asked 

that the Commission consider giving him the option to install a hanging light from the 

portico ceiling instead of the carriage lights he originally requested approval for.  

 

Commissioner Vollmer and Mr. Morganroth discussed the uniqueness of the door shutters 

that the applicant was requesting permission to remove. 

 

Commissioner Vater made a motion to amend the COA to allow the applicant to install either 

the wall lights or a hanging ceiling light in the colors white or black. Motion approved, 5-0. 

 

Commissioners Truesdale and Vater made a motion to approve the COA. Motion carried, 4-

1. 

 

 

 

 

 



5. City of Beloit Engineering Division – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2016-01 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to allow the 

construction of a ten-space paved parking lot at Turtle Creek Park. 

 

Mr. Morganroth read the staff report and recommendation.  

 

City Engineer Mike Flesch and Director of Parks and Leisure Services Brian Ramsey 

described the project in detail and answered questions from the Commission on the usage and 

history of Turtle Creek Park. 

 

Commissioners Vollmer and Kaye made a motion to approve the COA. Motion carried, 5-0. 

 

6. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness & Activities Since Last 

Meeting 

Mr. Morganroth announced that Fairbanks Morse had donated $1000.00 to the historic signs 

project. 

 

7. Historic District Signage Discussion 
Mr. Morganroth updated the Commissioners regarding the status of funding and installation 

of the historic district signage. He explained the procurement process and the information he 

needed in order to start soliciting bids from sign contractors. 

 

The Commission asked Mr. Morganroth to go ahead and request rough per-unit costs from 

contractors in order to provide a basis for discussion at the next Landmarks Commission 

meeting in March. 

 

The Commission agreed to hold off on further discussion of the signage until the next 

meeting when more members would be present. 

 

8. Committee Reports 

Education and Outreach Committee: None 

 

Grant Writing Committee: None 

 

Site Visit Committee: None 

 

9.   New Business 

None 

 

10. Adjournment 

Commissioners Vater and Vollmer moved to adjourn at 7:58pm. Motion carried, 5-0. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Alex Morganroth, Planner 

 Date Approved: March 11, 2016 



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION

Meeting Date: March 15, 2016 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: COA-2016-02

Applicant: Allen Carley Owner: Allen Carley Location: 729 Bluff Street

Existing Zoning: R-1B Single-Family
Residential District

Existing Land Use: Single-Family
Residential

Parcel Size: .2 Acres

Request Overview:
Allen Carley has submitted an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness for two projects – the replacement of four
windows and repair of trim on the residential structure at 729 Bluff Street in the City of Beloit. Section 32.05 of the Historic
Preservation Ordinance grants the Landmarks Commission the authority to issue a Certificate of Appropriateness prior to
the construction, reconstruction, or exterior alteration of any designated landmark, landmark site, or structure within an
historic district.

Consistency with the Historic Preservation Ordinance and Strategic Plan:
Consideration of this request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Historic Preservation Ordinance.
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Key Issues:
 The property is located in the Bluff Street Historic District and is also known as the O. B. Olmstead House.

o O. B. Olmstead was a craftsman that manufactured the windmills for the company that eventually became
Eclipse Windmill and then Fairbanks Morse.

 The Italianate-style home was constructed in 1875 and is classified as a “contributing” structure according to the
1981 Intensive Survey.

o Composite siding on structure is not original and likely installed prior to adoption of Historic Preservation
Ordinance.

 A covenant provision on the structure requiring pre-approval of alterations by the Wisconsin State Historical
Society expired in 2015.

 The applicant has proposed two projects:
o Windows Replacement (4)

 The applicant has proposed the complete replacement of four wood windows with Pella ProLine
450 Series aluminum-clad wood windows.

 The storm windows and existing double-hung windows are drafty and no longer provide a
tight fit with the frame due to rot and overall deterioration.

 A Pella Certified Contractor will be installing the windows.
 The windows are located in the bathroom (1) and kitchen (3).
 The existing windows do not appear original and consist of a stationary storm window and

double-hung window.
 The location of the windows proposed for replacement has minimum visibility from the street and

are located on a part of the house that is a later addition and not part of the original structure.
 The larger windows with pediment-shaped lintels on the front and sides of the original structure,

considered a highly important historical feature, would be unaffected by the proposed project.
 The proposed windows will match the existing windows in style and color scheme.
 The contractor may also replace some of the green trim around the windows if rotten or

deteriorating. Some of the trim appears to be painted 2x4s and is clearly not original.
o Trim Repair/Replacement

 Various sections of the decorative green trim located around the base of the house have
deteriorated due to time and weather. The owner has proposed repairing or replacing some of the
trim as necessary.

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance includes general review criteria to be used when
evaluating COA applications. The attached COA Checklist evaluates the completed work against the general
review criteria included in the Ordinance.

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance also establishes Specific Review Criteria to be used in
evaluating COA applications. The following criteria are relevant to this application.

o (1) Proportion of Windows and Doors
 The new windows will match the existing windows in size and style. The new windows will have



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

the same grill pattern (six over six) as the existing windows.
o (2) Architectural Details:

 Although the material used for the new windows will not be identical to the existing, the colors and
texture will be compatible with the other windows on the structure and will not be especially
visible due to their location towards the rear of the structure.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to install four new
aluminum-clad wood windows and repair trim on the structure located at 729 Bluff Street, based on the standards and
criteria contained in the Historic Preservation Ordinance and subject to the following conditions:

1. The new windows must exactly match the existing windows in color and grill-style.
2. Any window trim, sills, or lentils replaced must exactly match the existing in style and material.
3. Any trim replaced must be painted the same shade of green to match the existing trim.
4. All work shall be completed by March 15, 2017.
5. Any changes or additions to this Certificate of Appropriateness must be reviewed and approved by staff prior to

the start of any work. Work done without prior approval will be subject to the issuance of correction orders or
citations.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location Map, Application, Intensive Survey, Photos, COA General Criteria Checklist



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Photo Source: WI State Historical Society
Estimated Date: early 1980s (showing original siding)



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

View from Bluff Street (facing NW) of
Kitchen Windows #1 and 2



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Kitchen Windows #1 and 2



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Kitchen (close up)



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Kitchen Window #3 and Bathroom Window (facing SE) View
from End of Driveway

Kitchen Window #3
Bathroom Window



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Kitchen Window #3 and Bathroom Window (North side of
structure)

Kitchen Window #3

Bathroom Window



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Bathroom Window (Close Up)



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Kitchen Window #3 (Close Up)



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Example of Deteriorating Trim



COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street

Planning and Building Services Division
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609

For property located at: 729 Bluff Street

GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA
YES NO N/A

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use for a
property that requires alteration for use other than for its originally intended
purpose?

X

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character of a
building, structure or site? The removal or alteration of any historic material
or distinctive architectural features should be avoided when possible.

The windows proposed for replacement are likely not original and therefore
their removal would not take away from the structures distinguishing
historic character.

X

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis, rather than
trying to create an earlier or later appearance?

X

Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the development of a
building over time that may have acquired significance in their own right?

X

Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic features, or
examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a building, structure or
site?

X

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated architectural
features, wherever possible? If replacement is necessary, the new material
should match the material being replaced in composition, design color, texture
and other visual qualities.

The new windows will match the existing in color, texture, and general
visual qualities but will not be made of the same material.

X

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will
damage the surface of the historic building?

X

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve
archeological resources affected by or adjacent to any project?

X

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed, does this
design retain significant historical, architectural or cultural material and is the
design compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character of the
property and neighborhood?

X

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner that if
such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential
form and integrity of the building would be unimpaired?

X

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST


	3-15-16.pdf
	2-16-16.pdf
	COA-2016-02, 729 Bluff Street, Window Replacements.pdf

